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Exterior: The house is a 1% story building, built low to the ground, a modified
rectangle in shape, with an attached colonnaded porch on three sides. Exterior walls

and columns are stuccoed brick. The roof is a low gable, with three dormers on -the

front slope and two on the back slope. Gable ends have a Tow parapet with a course

of brick as cornice. The low shedlike roof of the porch has a plain box cornice. Columns
supporting the porch roof are evenly spaced, but not related to window and door placement.
Fourteen columns, untapered, rise directly from the masonry porch and end in plinth-like
caps with no entablature; the porch does not extend to the rear of the house. The rear
facade has a window on either side of a central extension of the building, one bay

square and terminating in a pedimented portico supported by heavy plaster-over-brick
columns. A1l window openings are rectangular with plain surrounds and sills. Windows

are double-hung, with nine Tights to the sash on the first floor and six to a sash in

the upper half story. Shutters are three-paneled and doorways have recessed transoms
with three Tights.

In 1934 a fire occurred, damaging a portion of the exterior and destroying the interior
of the structure.

Interior: The first floor plan consists of a large living room and a smaller drawing
room in front; a study and kitchen are located behind the Tiving room, and a bath and
a stairwell are located behind the drawing room. One chimney serves fireplaces in the
1iving room, study, and kitchen; fireplaces in the study and kitchen are Tlocated in
the corners of the rooms; the other chimney serves a fireplace in the drawing room.
The half story has a central hall with two bedrooms on the west side and a bedroom,
bath, and stairwell on the east side. Prior to a fire in 1934, the staircase extended
from the rear into what is now the drawing room. Although neither photographs nor
plans exist to document the interior priop to the fire, the restoration appears to be
in the style of the original. '

Surroundings:  The house sits atop a bluff surrounded by shrubbery and Tawn, .
Both sides of the avenue of oaks and the remainder of the plantation have been laid
out in a subdivision.

In the yard near the house is a small frame servants' house of undetermined age.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Architecturally, the house at Otranto is unlike any other surviving plantation house in

the South Carolina Towcountry.

Its construction date is undocumented.

It has been

speculated that the house was constructed in the early part of the Colonial period,
because it is built Tow to the ground and has an irregular floor plan, similar to early

houses in Charleston.

Culpepper map of Charles Town, dated 1672.

It also resembles (without its colonnade) a house depicted on the
Arthur Middleton, who with his brother

Edward was granted the property in 1679, had a dwelling house on the plantation, then

called Yeshoe, in 1682.

The next subsequent mention of a house on the property is in

1778, in a deed in which Dr. Alexander Garden conveyed the property to trustees for his

wife and son.

who bought the plantation in 1771.

The Berkeley biography attributes construction of the house to Dr. Garden,
Architectural historian Sam Stoney attributes

_construction to Dr. Garden's son, Maj. Alexander Garden, ca. 1790, based on interior
architectural details in the Federal style, observed before the house burned in 1934.
In the fire, the interior of the house was gutted, but most of the exterior and colonnade

survived.

Architecture:

The house was rebuilt very nearly to its original appearance.

Although Otranto was extensively burned in 1934 (the interior was

destroyed and the exterior was damaged), it has been restored. The accuracy of the

exterior restoration is substantiated by a series of photographs taken before the fire;

the interior reconstruction appears to be in the style of the original.

is important

The structure

because of its form with a columned piazza encircling the masonry walls

and parapetedggab}e ends. The form is indigenous to sub-tropical climates.

Literature:

novel, The Castle of Otranto, published in 1764.

Otranto™in a deed ot 1785.

Otranto's name is literary, being derived from Horace Walpole's gothic

The plantation is first called
Otranto Plantation was the inspiration for the poem,

"Carolina; or the Planter,” by Dr. Alexander Garden's friend, George Ogilvie.

“Military:

Maj. Alexander Garden was aide-de-camp to General Nathanel
- 1782, having previously served as a cornet in Lee's Legion.

Greene 1in

He published Anecdotes

~ of the Revolutionary War in America (Charleston, 1822) and Anecdotes of the American

Revolution (CharTeston, 1828).

‘Science:
Colonial South Carolina.

Dr. Alexander Garden was one of the most important scientific figures of
He was a leader in the fields of medicine, botany and natural

(continued)
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science and published several scientific papers. He was a correspondent of many of
the major scientists of his day, including the renowned Carolus Linnaeus of Sweden,
who named the flowering shrub, Gardenia, for him. As a physician, Dr. Garden
introduced in South Carolina the method of isolation and vaccine for smallpox.
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